
 

 

 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
9.30 AM - FRIDAY, 18 NOVEMBER, 2016 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM 3 - PORT TALBOT CIVIC CENTRE 

 

 
 
 PART 1 

 
1.  To receive any declarations of interest from Members   

 
2.  To receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 October, 

2016  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 

 To receive the report of the Head of Legal Services and 
Monitoring Officer 
 

3.  Grant of Dispensation  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 

4.  Public Services Ombudsman for Wales Annual Letter and Report 
2015-16  (Pages 11 - 34) 
 

5.  Public Services Ombudsman for Wales Code of Conduct Casebook  
(Pages 35 - 46) 
 

6.  Any urgent items at the discretion of the Chairman pursuant to 
Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972   
 

 
S.Phillips 

Chief Executive 
 

Civic Centre 
Port Talbot 9 November, 2016 
 
 

AGENDA 



Committee Membership:  
 
Chairman: G.T.Pullen 

 
Vice Chairman: 
 

Mrs J.E.Howells 
 

Independent 
Members: 
 

C.L.Jones and Mrs.B.Richards 
 

NPTBC 
Members: 
 

D.Keogh and A.L.Thomas 
 

Community 
Cttee Members:  
 

 
Town/Community Councillor Mrs.S.Davies 

Substitutes 
 

 

NPTCBC: 
 

M.Crowley 
 

Community 
Cttee Member: 
 

Mrs M.Gunter 
 

 
 
Notes:  (a) The Quorum for the Standards Committee is at least three 

Members including the Chairman (or in absence Vice Chairman). 
At least half the Members present (including the Chair) must be 
Independent Members. (e.g. if only two Independent Members 
attend, there must only be two other Members of the Committee 
present.) 

 
 (b) In view of the above, can all Members please inform the Monitoring 

Officer as soon as possible, if there is a problem with attendance. 
 



- 4 - 
 

271016 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

(Committee Rooms 1/2 - Port Talbot Civic Centre) 
 

Members Present:  27 October, 2016 
 
Chairperson: 
 

Mrs J.E.Howells 
 

Independent 
Members: 
 

C.L.Jones and Mrs.B.Richards 

NPTBC Members: 
 

Councillors D.Keogh and A.L.Thomas 

Community 
Committee Members: 
 

Town/Community Councillor Mrs S.Davies 
 

Officers In 
Attendance: 
 

I.Davies, J.Hodges and Mrs.T.Davies 
 

Apology: G.T.Pullen 
 

 
1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 29 JULY, 2016  

 
RESOLVED: that the Minutes of the previous meeting held on the 

29 July, 2016, be confirmed as a correct record. 
 
 

2. ACCESS TO MEETINGS  
 
RESOLVED: that pursuant to Section 100A(4) and (5) of the 

Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded for the following item of business which 
involved the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 18c of Part 
4 of Schedule 12A to the above Act. 
 
 

3. REFERRAL FROM THE OMBUDSMAN  
 
RESOLVED: that M.J. failed to comply with the Authority’s Code 

of Conduct and should be censured. 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES  
D.MICHAEL 

 
18 NOVEMBER 2016 

 
MATTER FOR DECISION 
 
WARD AFFECTED: BAGLAN 

 
GRANT OF DISPENSATION UNDER SECTION 81(4) LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 – COUNCILLOR CAROL CLEMENT-
WILLIAMS 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. To consider an application for a dispensation from Councillor 

Clement-Williams.  
 
Background 
 

2. Under Section 81(4) of the Local Government Act 2000 
Standards Committees may grant dispensations to a 
Member of a relevant authority (including a Community 
Council) allowing the Member to participate in any business 
where that participation would otherwise be prohibited by the 
mandatory provisions of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 

 
3. The National Assembly for Wales in the Standards 

Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 
2001 (SI No: 2279) sets out the circumstances in which 
these dispensations may be granted.  The Standards 
Committee may only grant dispensations in the 
circumstances set out in the Regulations.   
 

4. Under Paragraph 18 of The Code of Conduct (and the 
relevant Regulations) the Standards Committee may not 
consider granting a dispensation to an individual Member 
unless the Member seeking it has previously notified the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

Monitoring Officer of that interest together with the relevant 
details.   
 

5. In accordance with previous practice, it is suggested that any 
dispensation be granted until the first meeting of the Standards 
Committee following the Council Annual General Meeting in 
2017 in order to ensure that they all come up for renewal at the 
same time. 
 

 Application for Dispensation - Employment 
 

6. The Council is the largest employer in the County Borough and 
it is not uncommon for both Officers and Members to have 
family members employed by Council.  Unfortunately, this can 
cause some problems in dealing with Council business.  The 
Standards Committee has previously granted dispensations to 
cover this situation. 
 

7. The form of application for dispensation is intended to try to 
cover the situation when, although strictly required in law under 
the Members’ Code of Conduct, serial declarations affect the 
smooth running of Committee business in circumstances where 
the general public would not draw any adverse inference from 
the relationships being declared.   
 

8. Often Members have family whose employment position within 
the organisation puts them far away from the ability to influence 
Council Policy and are certainly not considered decision 
makers.  Sometimes, family members are in relatively low paid 
jobs which are part time or temporary in nature.   
 

9. Hence the applications for dispensation requests permission to 
speak and vote on issues relating to the business of Neath Port 
Talbot County Borough Council, (including personnel matters), 
provided these matters do not directly financially advantage or 
disadvantage, or give other direct benefit or dis-benefit to a 
member of the Councillor’s family who is employed by Council.  
The dispensation will not apply where the person employed is a 
senior manager of Council (i.e. by that I mean an Accountable 
Manager or above) or is otherwise charged with assisting in the 
determination of Council Policy.   
 

Page 6



 

10. The Member using the dispensation will understand that it 
cannot be used if the matter under consideration would confer a 
greater benefit on the employed family member than on other 
tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the Council’s area, or 
be such that a member of the public might reasonably conclude 
it would significantly affect the Member’s ability to act purely on 
the merits of the case and in the public interest if the Member 
were to take part in the discussion. 
 

 Standard form of Dispensation: Employment 
 

11. “To speak and vote on issues relating to the business of Neath 
Port Talbot County Borough Council including relevant 
personnel matters provided that (a) they do not directly 
financially advantage or disadvantage or give other direct 
benefit or disbenefit to a Member or the Member’s family who is 
employed by the County Borough Council or (b) that the 
employment is not as a senior manager nor is involved in 
assisting with the determination of Council policy.  This 
dispensation will not apply in circumstances where a member of 
the public might reasonably conclude that the employment 
would significantly affect the Councillor’s ability to act purely on 
the merits of the case and in the public interest.” 
 
Note: A Senior Manager is an Accountable Manager or 
equivalent and above. 
 

 Circumstances for granting the Dispensation: 
Employment 

 
12. The circumstances are:- 

 
13. “(d) the nature of the Member’s interest is such that the 

Member’s participation in the business to which the interest 
relates would not damage public confidence in the conduct of 
the relevant authority’s business” 
 
Note: this paragraph derives from Regulation 2 of the 
Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) 
Regulations 2001 and was the circumstance under which 
applications for dispensations of this sort were previously 
approved. 
 

Page 7



 

14. Councillor Clement-Williams has advised me that her niece 
works at the Hillside Secure Unit, Neath. 
 

 Financial Impact 
 
15. None  

 
Equality Impact Assessment 
 

16. This is not applicable 
 
Workforce Impacts 
 

17. Not applicable other than as described in the report. 
 
Legal Impacts 
 

18. These are explained in the report 
 
Risk Management 
 

19. Not applicable  
 
Consultation 
 

20. Not applicable  
 

Recommendation 
 
21. That the application for dispensation from Councillor Clement-

Williams be approved in the circumstances set out in 
Regulation 2 (d) of the Standards Committee (Grant of 
Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001 in the standard form 
as set out in Paragraph 11 to speak and vote and that the 
dispensation runs to the Standards Committee which follows 
the Annual Meeting 2017. 
 
Reason for Proposed Decision  
 

22. The statutory circumstances for granting the dispensation are 
set out in paragraph 13. 
 
 

Page 8



 

Implementation of Decision  
 

23. The decision is not one to which the call in procedure applies 
and will come into effect immediately. 

 
List of Background Papers  

 
24. Email application from Councillor Clement-Williams.  

 
Officer Contact  

 
25. For further information on this report please contact:- 

 
Mr. D. Michael,  
Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer  
Tel. No. 763368  
E-mail d.michael@npt.gov.uk 

Page 9

mailto:d.michael@npt.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



  

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
18 November 2016 

 
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES 

- D.MICHAEL 
 
 
 

MATTER FOR INFORMATION 
 
WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 
 
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales Annual Letter and Report 
2015/2016 
 
 Purpose of Report 
 
1. To advise Members of the Standards Committee of the receipt of 

the Ombudsman’s Annual Letter and the publication of his Annual 
Report. 

 
 Background 
 
2. In recent years the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (“the 

Ombudsman”) has adopted the practice of sending an annual letter 
to each local authority which comes within his jurisdiction.  A full 
copy of the letter and Factsheet is reproduced for Members at 
Annex 1.  In table E of the Factsheet the column showing the 
performance of this Council is the column on the left.  The Annual 
Letter and the Annual Report referred to in paragraph 6 of this 
report both relate to service complaints which do not fall within the 
remit of Standards Committees and Code of Conduct complaints 
which do.  Both types of complaint are referred to in this report. 

 
3. Comparatively little commentary is required on the Annual Letter.  

The number of service complaints received by the Ombudsman 
has decreased between the financial years 2014/15 and 2015/16 
(see Section A of the Factsheet).  As compared with a notional 
local authority average of 40 complaints (adjusted for population) 
there were 33 complaints against this Council.  This is to be 
welcomed.  However it should be noted that we are no longer a 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



  

direct provider of general housing – a function which generally 
attracts some complaints.   

 
4. The mix of service complaints is dealt with in Section B of the 

Factsheet.  The numbers in the various categories are similar to 
the Welsh average overall.  The numbers are slightly higher for 
planning and building contract and I have asked for the cases in 
that area to see whether there is any pattern. 

 
5. As to time taken to respond, (Section E of the Factsheet) since 

there were only two cases here the figures are not statistically 
significant.  

  
6. In the remainder of this report I look at the annual report of the 

Ombudsman for the financial year 2015/16.  I have reproduced at 
Annex 2 an extract from the Ombudsman’s report intended to give 
Members a flavour of the business handled by the Ombudsman’s 
office in the year in question.  It is to be noted that there is an 
overall decrease in the number of service complaints against 
county and county borough councils.  The Ombudsman comments 
that complaints about public bodies overall may be beginning to 
plateau.  I have however noted that the Ombudsman has recently 
commented that his office has seen a record   number of enquiries.  
Overall, cuts in public expenditure create an environment in which 
there is a mismatch between public expectations and the service 
which can be provided.  This will make it even more important to 
deal promptly with any complaints which arise and look for 
practical and achievable solutions. 

 
7. I have not included coloured pie charts but a link to the on-line 

version of the report appears below. 
 

http://www.ombudsman-

wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/AnnualReports_en/Annual%20Report%202015-

16%20-%20Final%20for%20web%20English.ashx 

 
8. The number of Code of Conduct complaints against members of 

county and county borough councils generally fell between the 
financial year 2014/15 and 2015/16.  However, there was a 
marked increase in the number of complaints against community 
councils. This may be the result of substantial numbers of 
complaints against individual community councils.  There were 
only two Code of Conduct complaints against Members of this 

Page 12

http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/AnnualReports_en/Annual%20Report%202015-16%20-%20Final%20for%20web%20English.ashx
http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/AnnualReports_en/Annual%20Report%202015-16%20-%20Final%20for%20web%20English.ashx
http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/~/media/Files/AnnualReports_en/Annual%20Report%202015-16%20-%20Final%20for%20web%20English.ashx


  

Council.  I will mention Community Council complaints in the 
meeting. 

 
9. Annex 3 contains the statistics for all county and county borough 

councils in Wales in relation to service complaints.  This table 
deals with cases closed rather than cases received.   

 
10. Annex 4 contains statistics relating to code of conduct complaints 

against members of county and county borough councils in Wales.   
 
 Financial Impact 
 
11. There is none as this is an information report. 
 
 Equality Impact Assessment 
 
12. None is required since this is an information report. 
 
 Workforce Impacts 
 
13. There are none. 
 
 Legal Impacts 
 
14. None arise from this report.   
 
 Risk Management 
 
15. Legal Services is required to provide statistics to the insurers from 

time to time on Ombudsman complaints. 
 
Consultation 
 
16. None is required. 
 
Appendices 
 
17. Annex 1 - Annual Letter of the Ombudsman 2015/16 
18. Annex 2 - Extract from the Ombudsman’s report  
19. Annex 3 - Statistics for all County and County Borough Councils in 

Wales in relation to service complaints 
20. Annex 4 - Statistics relating to Code of Conduct complaints against 

Members of County and County Borough Councils in Wales 

Page 13



  

 
. List of Background Papers 

 
21. Public Services Ombudsman for Wales Annual Report 2015/2016. 
 
 Officer Contact 

 
22. Mr. David Michael – Head of Legal Services 

E-mail d.michael@npt.gov.uk.  Tel: 01639 763368 
 

Page 14

mailto:d.michael@npt.gov.uk


  

ANNEX 1 
 

 

Page 15



  

 

Page 16



  

 

Page 17



  

 

Page 18



  

 

Page 19



  

 

Page 20



  

ANNEX 2 
 

 

Page 21



  

 

Page 22



  

 

Page 23



  

 
 
 

Page 24



  

 
 
 

Page 25



  

 

Page 26



  

 

Page 27



  

 

Page 28



  

 

Page 29



  

 

Page 30



  

 

Page 31



  

ANNEX 3 
 

 

Page 32



  

ANNEX 4 
 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



  

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

18 NOVEMBER 2016 
 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES 
- D.MICHAEL 

 
 
 

MATTER FOR INFORMATION 
 
WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 
 
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales Code of Conduct Casebook 
 
 Purpose of Report 
 
1. To draw to the attention of members of Standards Committee 

recent decisions reported by the Public Services Ombudsman for 
Wales 

 
 Background 
 
2. As a supplement to the Annual Letter sent by the Public Services 

Ombudsman for Wales to all local authorities, the Ombudsman 
now reports on the outcome of complaints submitted to him.  
Attached to this report in Annex 1 is the Ombudsman’s Code of 
Conduct Casebook issued last month.   

 
3. The Casebook summarises cases where the Ombudsman’s 

officers found no evidence of a breach of the Code and where no 
action was necessary in which case complaints were not referred 
to either the local Standards Committee or the Adjudication Panel 
for Wales.  This edition of the Casebook also contains a summary 
of one case which was referred to the Standards Committee of 
Pembrokeshire County Council and was subsequently the subject 
of an appeal to the Adjudication Panel for Wales  
 
Financial Impact  
 

4. There is none as this is an information report. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



  

 Equality Impact Assessment 
 

5. None is required since this is an information report. 
 
 Workforce Impacts 
 

6. There are none 
 
 Legal Impacts 
 

7. None arise from this report  
 
 Risk Management 
 

8. This is not relevant 
 
 Consultation  
 

9. None is required. 
 
 Appendices  
 

10. Annex A – Public Services Ombudsman for Wales Code of 
Conduct Casebook October 2016. 
 
List of Background Papers  
 

11. None other than that referred to in the report. 
 

 Officer Contact 
 

12.  Mr. David Michael – Head of Legal Services 
E-mail d.michael@npt.gov.uk.  Tel: 01639 763368 

 

Page 36

mailto:d.michael@npt.gov.uk


Issue 10  October 2016 

 3 

3

5

  7

  8

Contents 

Case summaries 

No evidence of breach 

No action necessary

Referred to Standards Committee 

Referred to Adjudication Panel for Wales 

More information  9 

Introduction
The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales considers complaints that members of local authorities in 
Wales have broken the Code of Conduct. The Ombudsman investigates such complaints under the 
provisions of Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 and the relevant Orders made by the National 
Assembly for Wales under that Act.

Where the Ombudsman decides that a complaint should be investigated, there are four findings, set 
out under section 69 of the Local Government Act 2000, which the Ombudsman can arrive at:

(a) that there is no evidence that there has been a breach of the authority’s code of conduct;

(b) that no action needs to be taken in respect of the matters that were subject to the investigation;

(c) that the matter be referred to the authority’s monitoring officer for consideration by the
standards committee;

(d) that the matter be referred to the President of the Adjudication Panel for Wales for adjudication
by a tribunal (this generally happens in more serious cases).

Page 37

fc096
Typewritten Text
ANNEX A

fc096_1
Typewritten Text



2

In the circumstances of (c) and (d) above, the Ombudsman is required to submit the investigation 
report to the standards committee or a tribunal of the Adjudication Panel for Wales and it is for them 
to consider the evidence found by the Ombudsman, together with any defence put forward by the 
member concerned. It is also for them to determine whether a breach has occurred and, if so, what 
penalty (if any) should be imposed.

The Code of Conduct Casebook contains summaries of reports issued by this office for which the 
findings were one of the four set out above. However, in reference to (c) and (d) findings, The Code of 
Conduct Casebook only contains the summaries of those cases for which the hearings by the standards 
committee or Adjudication Panel for Wales have been concluded and the outcome of the hearing is 
known. This edition covers July to September 2016, but also includes the summaries of older cases for 
which the standards committee or Adjudication Panel hearings were concluded during this period.

Page 38



3

Case summaries

No evidence of breach

Magor with Undy Community Council - Objectivity and Propriety
Case Number 201601530 - Report issued in August 2016 
A member of the public complained that a member (“the Councillor”) of Magor with Undy Community 
Council (“the Council”) had written to the Council to ask to represent it on external committees.  At the 
time he wrote to the Council he was suspended from Council duties, following a ruling by the Adjudication 
Panel for Wales (APW), that he had previously breached the Code of Conduct.  The complainant said that 
the Councillor had shown little regard for the decision of the APW and had brought his Office or Authority 
into disrepute.  

The Ombudsman established that the Councillor had written a letter to the Council but that it made clear 
his intention was to serve on those committees once he returned to his duties following the suspension.  
There was no evidence to suggest that he had sought to undertake Council duties whilst he was 
suspended.  The Ombudsman found that there was no evidence of a breach of the Code of Conduct. 

Flintshire County Council - Duty to uphold the law
Case Number 201501526 - Report issued August 2016
Mr A complained that a member (“the Councillor”) of Flintshire County Council (“the Council) may have 
breached the Code of Conduct for members by attempting to obtain money from him in return for support 
for his planning applications.  Mr A said that when he refused to pay off the Councillor’s mortgages or a car 
loan, she opposed his planning applications and failed to declare an interest in relation to her dealings with 
him.

Information was obtained from the Council and North Wales Police, including recordings of Police 
interviews with the Councillor and Mr A.

The Ombudsman found that there was no evidence to substantiate Mr A’s allegations, and as such there 
was no breach of the Code.

Caerphilly County Borough Council - Objectivity and propriety
Case Number 201601317 - Report issued in September 2016 
Mr A complained that a member (“the Councillor”) of Caerphilly County Borough Council (“the Council”) 
may have breached the Code of Conduct by deliberately providing confidential information to a member of 
the public (Mr B).

Information was obtained and considered from Mr A, the Councillor, the Council and various witnesses.  Mr 
B was also interviewed.  

The Ombudsman found that the information provided by Mr A appeared to be an unintentional 
misunderstanding and that, overall, the evidence did not suggest that the Councillor disclosed confidential 
information to Mr B and therefore there was no breach of the Code of Conduct.Page 39



Langstone Community Council - Selflessness and stewardship
Case Number 201504048 – Report issued in September 2016
Mr B complained that a member (“the Councillor”) of Langstone Community Council (“the Council”) 
may have breached the Code of Conduct for members by allegedly improperly using his influence as a 
councillor and former police officer to cause the Police to visit a resident, Mr A, in an attempt to “warn 
him off” pursuing concerns about the Councillor. 

Mr A and Mr B were interviewed and information was obtained from the Police and the Councillor. 

The Ombudsman found that the evidence did not suggest that there was a breach of the Code by the 
Councillor.  The Councillor believed that he and his family were being harassed by Mr A, and the evidence 
did not suggest that he sought to use his status as a councillor or former police officer to influence how 
the Police dealt with the matter.  The Ombudsman found there was no evidence of a breach of the Code.

4

Page 40



5

No action necessary

Isle of Anglesey County Council - Accountability and openness
Case Number 201505105  – Report issued in July 2016
A complaint was issued claiming that a member (“the Councillor”) of the Isle of Anglesey County Council, 
had broken the Code of Conduct by taken part in a decision in the Orders and Planning Committee meeting 
(“the Committee”) even though his nephew lived near the development under discussion. 

The investigation considered whether the Councillor had breached paragraphs of the Code of Conduct with 
regard to prejudice and personal interests. 

Whilst the Ombudsman recognises that the Councillor had broken the Code by failing to declare a personal 
interest in the Committee’s meeting, he didn’t believe that the Councillor had a prejudicial interest based 
upon the evidence gathered. 

The Ombudsman’s conclusion was that no action needed to be taken regarding the matters investigated.

Bridgend County Borough Council - Promotion of equality and respect
Case Number 201503556 - Report issued in July 2016 
The Ombudsman investigated a complaint that a member (“the Councillor”) of Bridgend County Borough 
Council (“the Council”) had breached the Code of Conduct for members when she called another member 
a “scab” at the conclusion of a Development Control Committee meeting on 8 January 2015.  It was also 
alleged that the Councillor called the member a “b****** scab” in the Council’s Members’ Room about a 
week later and that she refused to apologise in full for her comments. 

The Councillor’s reason for refusing to apologise was that she believed, in the absence of evidence of any 
dispensation granted to the Member during the miners’ strike of 1984-85, her comment was a statement of 
fact.  

Evidence of the Member’s dispensation was presented to the Councillor during the course of the 
investigation and she acknowledged that she was therefore wrong to call the Member a “scab” and said 
that she was willing to publicly apologise to him. The Councillor accepted that her actions had breached the 
Code of Conduct.

In reaching his finding, the Ombudsman considered the Councillor’s acceptance that her conduct breached 
the Code and her offer to apologise to the member for her actions.  In light of this the Ombudsman 
concluded that it was not in the public interest to pursue this matter further, and so no action needed to be 
taken in respect of the matters investigated.

Cwmaman Town Council – Disclosure and registration of interests 
Case Number  201504239 – Report issued in August 2016 
Councillor A complained that a member (“the Councillor”) of Cwmaman Town Council (“the Town Council”) 
might have breached the Code of Conduct when he failed to declare an interest at a Town Council meeting Page 41



on 30 September 2015 in respect of a planning application (“the application”) and by his behaviour at the 
end of the meeting.  

The Ombudsman investigated whether the Councillor had an interest in the application under discussion 
and whether his behaviour at the end of the meeting was such that it brought his office or the Town 
Council into disrepute and whether it could be considered disrespectful.

The Ombudsman found that the Councillor’s conduct might have breached the Code.  However, the 
Ombudsman concluded that the matter was not in the public interest to pursue.  The Ombudsman’s 
finding was that no action needed to be taken in respect of the matters investigated. 

6

Page 42



7

Manorbier Community Council - Disclosure and registration of interests
Case Number 201408960 – Report issued in February 2016
The owner of a Caravan Park complained that a member (“the Councillor”) of Manorbier Community 
Council (“the Council”) was improperly involved in discussions at a meeting when it was resolved to 
recommend to the local planning authority that a planning application relating to the Caravan Park be 
refused.  The Councillor’s house is adjacent to the Caravan Park and she had acknowledged making 
a number of complaints about the business over the years.  The Councillor accepted that she had a 
personal interest in the matter, but denied that she had a prejudicial interest which would have prevented 
her from being involved in the decision.

The Ombudsman found that given the proximity of the Councillor’s home to the business, and the history 
of complaints, it was likely that she had a prejudicial interest in the planning application.  He therefore 
considered it likely that the Councillor had breached the Code of Conduct.  He recommended that his 
report should be referred to the Monitoring Officer of Pembrokeshire County Council, for consideration by 
the Council’s Standards Committee.

The Standards Committee heard the case on 20 May 2016.  It found that the Councillor had breached 
the Code of Conduct and imposed a two month suspension.  The Committee also recommended that the 
Councillor undertake training on the Code of Conduct within six months.

The Councillor subsequently appealed the Committee’s decision to the Adjudication Panel for Wales.  The 
Panel agreed that the Councillor had breached the Code and increased the period of suspension to three 
months.

Referred to Standards Committee

Page 43



8

Referred to Adjudication Panel for Wales

There are no summaries in relation to this finding

Page 44



9

More information 

We value any comments or feedback you may have regarding The Code of Conduct Casebook. We
would also be happy to answer any queries you may have regarding its contents. Any such
correspondence can be emailed to Matthew.Aplin@ombudsman-wales.org.uk or Lucy.Geen@
ombudsman-wales.org.uk or sent to the following address:

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae
Pencoed
CF35 5LJ

Tel: 0300 790 0203
Fax: 01656 641199

e-mail: ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk (general enquiries)

Follow us on Twitter: @OmbudsmanWales

Further information about the service offered by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales can also
be found at www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk

Page 45

mailto:Matthew.Aplin%40ombudsman-wales.org.uk?subject=
https://twitter.com/OmbudsmanWales
www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 October, 2016
	3 Grant of Dispensation
	4 Public Services Ombudsman for Wales Annual Letter and Report 2015-16
	5 Public Services Ombudsman for Wales Code of Conduct Casebook
	Annex A - Ombudsman Code of Conduct Casebook




